
AB
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES

TUESDAY 11 NOVEMBER 2014
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission.

4. CPFT Consultation Paper - Personality Disorder Community 
Service/Complex Cases, Including Lifeworks

3 - 32

5. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group 
Update

33 - 40

6. Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Update 
Report

41 - 46

7. Scrutiny in a Day - One Year On 47 - 50

8. Notice of Intention to Take Executive Decisions 51 - 68

9. Work Programme 2014/2015 69 - 74

10. Date of Next Meeting

Thursday 8 January 2015

Public Document Pack



There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: B Rush (Chairman), J Stokes (Vice Chairman), S Allen, R Ferris, N Shabbir, K Sharp 
and A Shaheed

Substitutes: Councillors: Sylvester, D Fower, R Herdman and M Lee

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 4

11 NOVEMBER 2014 Public Report

Report of the Associate Director, CPFT

Contact Officer(s) – Neil Winstone, Associate Director, CPFT
Contact Details – Elizabeth House, Fulbourn Hospital, Cambridge

CPFT CONSULTATION PAPER – PERSONALITY DISORDER COMMUNITY 
SERVICE/COMPLEX CASES, INCLUDING LIFEWORKS

1. PURPOSE

To update the Committee about CPFT Community Personality Disorder Service since the end of the 
consultation, and about the current position regarding implementation of the service. The last update was 
provided to the committee on 8 July 2014.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee to consider the report

3.

3.1

BACKGROUND

1. The consultation was about the specialist Personality Disorder Service provided by CPFT. 

2. The consultation closed on the 14th July 2014 

3. The consultation paper was discussed at the CCG Public Board meeting on the 16h September.

4.  The CCG endorsed the proposals, and also supported the co-design work being undertaken by a 
joint project group involving CPFT staff, service users, carers, and other stakeholders including 
voluntary sector organisations and HealthWatch.

5. CPFT published its response to the consultation on the 16 September.

6. The sit-in at Tension Road ended on Friday 4th July. This followed agreement being reached 
between CPFT and the service users. The agreement is in two parts. In summary these are;

a. Part one - provision of Lifeworks in Cambridge for a period of 5 years.
b. Part two - for service users, CPFT and others to develop a joint proposal for future funding 

to take to commissioners.

7. If part two is successful, then part one would no longer be required as it would be replaced by the 
agreed service model.

Consultation responses – summary (full response document attached) 

In total 58 responses to the consultation were received. Of these, 25 were submitted online via the 
‘Survey Monkey’, 9 were emailed to the project mailbox and 24 arrived by post.  

There was a mixture of individual and group responses. Overall, the majority of the respondents were 
from Cambridge City or South Cambridgeshire. This is unsurprising as the current service is focused in 
Cambridge, although efforts were made to disseminate information about the consultation in all parts of 

3



3.2

3.3

the county.

Roughly half (53%) of the respondents were service users, carers or members of the public, and just 
under a third (29%) were NHS professionals

There were differences between the responses from service users/public and professionals. Overall the 
professionals were much more likely to think the proposals would have a positive impact:

There were differing views and perceptions about the use of resources and equity of access, with the 
view in Cambridge broadly of a loss of resource, where as elsewhere in the county the view that the 
proposals were an improvement on current provision. 

As mentioned, a project group has been formed to take forward the joint proposal. This has met on a 
number of occasions including a wider stakeholder event held on the 8th August, and another one on the 
17th September.  The project group has taken account of the feedback received .The next workshop is 
planned for the 29th October and will be held in Peterborough. The project group has been keen to make 
sure that views from across the Trust are reflected in the plans.

The membership of the project includes service user and carer representatives, CPFT, MIND, 
HealthWatch, commissioners form both health and social care, and the CPFT Recovery College. The 
aim is to conclude this work in the autumn with a proposal to go to commissioners for funding.

Main feedback themes

To enhance the transparency of the consultation process, a meeting was held on 31st July involving 
Health committee Council members from Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough City 
Council, representatives of HealthWatch and the CCG, to review all written submissions to the 
consultation, so that once the consultation response document is published by CPFT, there can be 
confidence that it fairly reflects the feedback provided.

The full response document is attached, but in summary main themes of the feedback to the consultation 
are;

 Need for lifelong support and stability.  Concern about post-discharge support, access to crisis 
and the role of GP’s and other organisations.

 Need for social support interventions and opportunities to socialise
 Greater equity welcomed, but is the offer sufficient to meet needs?
 Service users need to be treated as individuals. Offer seems rigid and too medical-driven
 Consultation unsatisfactory and information not clear.
 Service user participation in service design.
 Review and evaluation of new pathway
 Concerns about the funding for mental health services, and the view that funding in mental health 

may create savings in the wider health economy. 

Update on current the service 

The specialist Personality Disorder Community Service is operating in the Peterborough locality, two 
days a week in line with the agreed operating model. The team are offering a range of assessments and 
interventions and are building up a caseload. They are transferring people from the locality teams and 
also taking on new referrals. In common with other areas of the Trust, we are not able to provide as 
much as we would like, but nevertheless there is now greater provision of evidenced based interventions 
being provided. 

The service operates from the Gloucester Centre site at Orton Longueville.  Most of CPFTs mental health 
teams are based there and this gives good access to other CPFT services. 

The team will continue to monitor demands and capacity and work with other teams to mage this as 
effectively as possible. 

4



KEY ISSUES
The team will need to monitor demand as it is like that there will be insufficient capacity to provide as 
wide a range of intervention as would be desirable. 

IMPLICATIONS
Any new proposals developed form the joint project group would apply city wide.

4. NEXT STEPS

1. The new Personality Disorder Community Service is being implemented. 
2. The work of the co-design project group continues. 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

NICE guidance - borderline personality disorder CG 78
http://www.nice.org.uk/CG78
NICE guidance – antisocial personality disorder CG 77
 http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/CG77
Consultation Document attached
http://www.cpft.nhs.uk/Downloads/DVD-
Documents/Publications/PD%20pathway%20consultation%20paper%202014%2006%2002%20final2.pdf

6. APPENDICES

 CPFT Response to Consultation feedback paper

5

http://www.nice.org.uk/CG78
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/CG77
http://www.cpft.nhs.uk/Downloads/DVD-Documents/Publications/PD%20pathway%20consultation%20paper%202014%2006%2002%20final2.pdf
http://www.cpft.nhs.uk/Downloads/DVD-Documents/Publications/PD%20pathway%20consultation%20paper%202014%2006%2002%20final2.pdf
http://www.cpft.nhs.uk/Downloads/DVD-Documents/Publications/PD%20pathway%20consultation%20paper%202014%2006%2002%20final2.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



A member of Cambridge University Health Partners 

 

Consultation Response Paper 

Personality Disorder Community Service/Complex 
Cases Service, including Lifeworks  

 
September 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 

 
 
 
 
Contents: 
 
1. INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND       3 
 
1.1 About this document         3 
 
1.2 Background          3 
 
1.3 Joint project group         3 
 
2. RESPONSES TO THE CONSULTATION      4 
 
2.1 Who reponded to the consultation       4 
 
2.2 Feedback about the aims of the consultation      5 
 
2.3 The proposed changes        6 
 
2.4 The two year pathway         6 
 
3. SUMMARY OF MAIN THEMES & RESPONSES     7 
 
4. NEXT STEPS          19 
 
5. SUMMARY OF RESPONSES       20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

1.1. About This Document 

 
This document is the formal response to the consultation which ended on the 14th July 2014. It 
provides a summary of feedback received, responds to these and describes the next steps. 

1.2. Background  

 
The consultation into services provided by CPFT for people with personality disorder commenced on 
the 2nd June 2014 and ran for 6 weeks, concluding on the 14th July. The consultation paper had been 
produced jointly with the Cambridgeshire Commissioning Group (CCG), with oversight provided by the 
Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee working group. The paper has also been discussed 
at the Peterborough City Council Health Overview Group. HealthWatch in both Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough have also been involved and provided support to the consultation process. CPFT 
extends its thanks to everyone involved. 
 
Whilst this was not a public consultation, CPFT was keen to get feedback from as wide a group of 
stakeholders as possible. To that end we; 
 

 Sent paper copies of the consultation paper and questionnaire to current and past service users 

of CPFT personality disorder services. They were also provided with a pre-paid/addressed 

envelope in which to return the questionnaire. 

 Made copies available to the Complex Cases Friends and Family group. 

 Made the paper and questionnaire accessible on the Trust’s public facing website  

 Made the questionnaire available electronically on ‘Survey Monkey’. 

 Set up a dedicated email address where responses and comments could be sent. 

 Held focus groups across the county in order to broaden feedback and discussion about the 

proposals 

 

In order to support the transparency of the process, all written responses, including queries raised at 
the Focus group events, have been scrutinised by a local councillor representative of the health 
committees from Peterborough and Cambridgeshire, HealthWatch and CCG.  
 
The focus groups were arranged with the support of both HealthWatch in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough as follows: 
 

 Cambridge – 20th June Meadows Community Centre 

 Huntingdon – 27th June – Medway Centre 

 Peterborough – 25th June – The Fleet Community Centre 

 Wisbech – 3rd July – Rosmini Community Centre 
 
The Trust would like to thank everyone who has taken the time to provide feedback.  
 
It is important to note that the consultation relates to the CPFT specialist personality disorder service. 
People with personality disorder are frequently in contact with other CPFT teams and services (such as 
adult locality teams, CRHT etc.), and services provided by other organisations such as MIND, 
Richmond fellowship and primary care. Therefore the numbers of service users and staff referred to in 
the consultation relate only to the specialist PD team. 
 
1.3 Joint Proposal Project Group 
 
Since the consultation started and as part of the agreement reached to end the sit-in at Tenison Road, 
a joint project group has been formed. This has representatives from a wide range of stakeholders 

9



 

4 
 

including service users and carers, voluntary sector organisations and local authority commissioners. 
The aim of this is to undertake a co-designed proposal for further service development for people with 
personality disorder. Work is at an early stage, but the aim is to see if a joint model can be agreed by 
stakeholders, and if it can, develop a business case for submission to commissioners. It is recognised 
that obtaining funding in the current financial climate is going to be a challenge. Never-the-less the first 
step is to see if a joint proposal can be produced. This work should conclude in the autumn. 
 
2. RESPONSES TO THE CONSULTATION 

 

2.1  Who responded to the consultation? 
 
In total 58 consultation questionnaires were received. Of these, 25 were submitted online via the 
survey monkey, 9 were emailed to the project mailbox and 24 arrived by post. 
 
In addition to the completed questionnaires, written submissions were also received including a 
response from: 
 

 some service users at Lifeworks supported by a petition with 3426 signatures and 965 online 

signatures 

 Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee 

 Peterborough City Council Mental Health Lead 

 A number if email responses were also received. 

 
Overall, the majority of the respondents were from Cambridge City or South Cambridgeshire. This is 
perhaps unsurprising as the current service is focused in Cambridge, although efforts were made to 
disseminate information about the consultation in all parts of the county. 
 
Number and proportion of respondents from Cambridgeshire & Peterborough LA districts 

Cambridge 
City 

South 
Cambs 

East 
Cambs 

Huntingdonshire Fenland Peterborough Other 

48% 30% 4% 8% 2% 6% 2% 

 
Roughly half (53%) of the respondents were service users, carers or members of the public, and just 
under a third (29%) were NHS professionals. 
 
In addition to the written responses, we held meetings in Cambridge, Peterborough and Huntingdon,  
 
2.2   Feedback about the aims of the consultation  
 
Respondents were asked whether the proposals helped to achieve the aims of the consultation: 
 
To what extent do you think the proposals help to achieve the following aims? 

 Negative 
impact 

Neither positive 
nor negative 

Positive impact 

To use resources as efficiently as possible 
 

45% 23% 32% 

To meet the needs of patients across the 
whole area served by the Trust in an 
equitable way 

32% 23% 45% 

To provide services which are recognised 
as effective (i.e. there is evidence to prove 
that they are effective) 

40% 27% 33% 

To maximise the number of people who can 
be seen by the service 

29% 19% 52% 

10



 

5 
 

To provide a service that supports recovery 
(see glossary at the end for what we mean 
by recovery) 

39% 24% 37% 

 
There were differences between the responses from service users/public and professionals, as the 
following examples show. Overall the professionals were much more likely to think the proposals would 
have a positive impact: 
 
To what extent do you think the proposals help to achieve the following aims? 

 To use resources as efficiently as possible 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

blank Total 

Health or Social 
Care Professionals 

10% 10% 80% 0% 100% 

Organisations 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% 

Public 63% 22% 11% 4% 100% 

Grand Total 41% 20% 30% 9% 100% 

 

 To meet the needs of patients across the whole area served by the 
Trust in an equitable way 
 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
Impact 

blank  

Health or Social 
Care Professionals 

10% 0% 90% 0% 100% 

Organisations 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% =101 

Public 48% 19% 30% 4% 100% 
=101 

Grand Total 32% 16% 43% 9% 100% 

 
Some of the comments illustrate the different perceptions of efficiency and equity in the context of the 
PD service: 
 

‘It is clear that a greater number of clients, from a larger geographical area can receive a well 
thought out service from appropriately skilled staff.’ (Health/social care professional) 

 
‘It might seem fairer to give more people a little but if it is not enough to produce change for 
anyone then no one is actually benefiting for the same expenditure.  At least a few people were 
before.’ (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
Not everyone agreed with the aims of the changes, and several people commented that there was not 
enough information or evidence to comment.  The main concerns expressed were about: 
 

- The closure of a service considered effective (lifeworks) 
- The need for a lifelong service 
- Limitations in the proposed provision, leaving people with unmet needs 
- Lack of social support and individual approach. 

 
2.3   The proposed changes 
 
Overall, a quarter of respondents agreed with the proposals, 35% agreed with some aspects and 38% 
disagreed overall.  Almost half of the respondents felt the proposed changes would have a negative 
effect on them. It was clear from the comments that many service users felt the changes would put 
their lives at risk: 

11



 

6 
 

 
‘Losing Lifeworks will lead to my isolation; increase my depression and suicidal thoughts.  I will 
feel I will have no purpose in life and no reason to get out of bed.’ (Service user, Cambridge 
City)  

 
‘If the service changes, I feel this as a life or death situation.’ (Service user, South Cambs) 

 
Whilst there was support of the more focused therapeutic approach to treatment, overall there were 
concerns about the impact of the proposed changes. People expressed fear about the loss of regular 
social contact and a safety net. There was concern about people who might face discharge without 
being ready to move on and without clear understanding of resources available in the community to 
support them. Concerns were also expressed about: 
 

- Loss of hope 
- Loss of regular contact and a safety net 
- Group therapy not suitable for everyone 
- The service offer being too structured/rigid 

 
In terms of mitigations and suggested alternatives, the following comments were made: 
 

 Keep Lifeworks. 

 3 follow up appointments are pointless, need a stable social group. 

 Fast track a re-referral and place with previous care co-ordinator. 

 Offer one drop-in group a week. 

 MIND proposal goes some way but more specialist input needed. 

 Access to open clinic/crisis support. 

 Lifelong support. 

 Social forum, not just therapy. 

 Involve SUs in service design. 

 Support for family and friends at referral/assessment/ transition. 

 Prompt response to emergency referral. 

 
Health and social care professionals raised a number of questions regarding the proposed pathway 
 

 Who is responsible for SOVA? 

 Clarity needed for the social worker role 

 PD triage from ARC 

 Responsibility for care management at the end of the pathway; clarity on GP role 

 More modern and effective 

 It is too expert driven 

 
These are addressed further in Section 3. 
 
2.4   The two year pathway 
 
One of the key changes proposed in the consultation paper was to offer a service of up to 2 years, with 
the aim of moving towards a client’s independence and discharge from mental health services.   
 
Only 15% of the members of the public agreed with the time-limited pathway. This contrasted with 80% 
of the health or social professionals: 
 
 

12



 

7 
 

 Which of the following statements do you agree with the most? 
“The personality disorder service should maintain regular contact with 
PD patients throughout their lives.” 
“The personality disorder service should support PD patients for a 
limited period of time until they are able to manage their symptoms 
themselves and get back in control of their lives.” 
 Tick the one that most closely reflects your views 
 

 Limited period Throughout Unsure/can't say Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

80% 0% 20% 100% 

Organisation 50% 25% 25% 100% 

Public 15% 65% 19% 100% 

Grand Total 35% 45% 20% 100% 

3.  SUMMARY OF MAIN THEMES AND RESPONSES 

 
Feedback has been grouped under eight main themes. Where there are specific questions these have 
either been addressed under one of the eight headings or are responded to separately.  So that 
anonymity is maintained individual feedback is not reported here, however as mentioned earlier, all 
individual responses have been independently read, and it is confirmed that this summary is a fair 
reflection of the points raised. 
 
3.1     Need for lifelong support and stability.  Concern about post-discharge support, access to 
crisis and the role of GP’s and other organisations. 
 
Many respondents emphasised that personality disorder is a lifelong condition and that periodically 
during their lives people may need more support. Being discharged and re-referred at these times was 
seen as problematic for the following reasons:  
 

- Difficulty getting back in to the service, lack of assurance that support will be available, long 
waits seen as likely 

- Seeking help is not easy   
- Need for stability 
- Need for support from specially trained staff 

 
In its response, the Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee working group expressed 
concern that having been through the pathway once or twice, some people with high-level needs may 
find they are no longer a priority for receiving services. The working group emphasised that the 
recovery model should be applied sensitively and that there should be appropriate support either 
outside the pathway or as part of a redesigned pathway.  
 
Concern about the proposed time-limited service and the lack of support in a crisis for people outside 
the service were prominent themes among the consultation responses: 
 

‘BPD by its nature is good times and bad. Service users come and go, and come back again.  
They need to know that the net is always there for them.  Stability in their unstable lives.’ 
(Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘The time limit is hugely stressful and I will miss the regular contact with my case manager.  
Although I do not see him very frequently, knowing I can helps me get by.  Often having support 
on call is enough for me, I really fall to pieces if I know it’s not there….Suggestions:  To be able 

13



 

8 
 

to fast track a re-referral and place them with their previous co-ordinator.  To offer one drop in 
group a week’  (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘(Need) a service which is not time limited (we have this for life, there is no way it can be sorted 
in 2 years!).  Someone or somewhere to go when in crisis with specially trained staff to deal 
with it.’ (Service user, South Cambs) 

 
‘It is clearly aimed at "new entrants" to the service, i.e. emphasis on recovery model and 
maximum two years of service. This does not seem to reflect the reality for many with this 
lifelong illness and their movement into and out of the Service.    For the small number but 
growing number of residents with treatment resistant personality disorder the treatment and 
support in the community is and will be about stability and continued access to help in times of 
crisis.’  (Carer, South Cambs) 
 
‘The fear of being discharged before I am well is so great that it stops me being able to focus on 
getting better, this is just another thing that wants to give up on me if I am not good enough.’ 
(Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘People like us are known for having difficulty asking for help, making us do this over and over 
again is cruel and frankly people like me just won’t be able to manage it.  We will just 
disappear, which may make your numbers look good but in reality will not serve us at all.  Out 
of the 6 people in my group, all 6 have been 'pathwayed' out, before the consultation we were 
considered worth helping’. (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘Personality disorders (PD) are usually long-term conditions that can fluctuate over time.  Due 
to the tendency for long-term implications with PD, there needs to be a service for those with 
the most complex/severe and enduring needs.’  (Member of the public, Cambridge City) 
 
‘Who will hold the risk when the time with the service comes to an end? Is this flexible?’ 
(Health/social care professional) 

 
Response 
We recognise that moving to a more focused time limited pathway approach is for some existing 
service users and carers (particularly in Cambridge) a significant change, and has caused concerns. 
These were reinforced by the decision taken initially to close Lifeworks. The aim of the changes was to 
provide a specialist service across the Trust as equitably as possible, using available evidence and 
best practice. 
 
The work that has been done over the last several months has helped raise the profile of personality 
disorder and the needs of people with mental health problems, and the current availability of services 
and funding. However it needs to be recognised that services across mental health, both NHS, 
voluntary sector and primary care are under severe pressure.  
 
Response 
For those service users who are discharged from the Trust services, it is important to note that a large 
part of the treatment approach will be to try and help the patient avoid or better manage crisis periods 
as far as possible. Care planning and discharge planning will include plans for dealing with the 
eventuality of a crisis or relapse. Once discharged from the CPFT, risk will be held by the GP, the 
service user and where appropriate their carer, and any other service involved. 
 
For service users in contact with the PD community service - support will be defined within the care 
plan. Outside of normal hours this will be via out of hours GP service, A&E (there are mental health 
staff working out of A&Es who would have access to the persons records and care plan). They will also 
have access to CRHT (Crisis Resolution Home Treatment) teams either via the PD service or via GP 
referral out of hours). 
 

14



 

9 
 

‘As regards to discharging from the service I would suggest a discharge to the GP with a plan is 
a good idea but leaves the client unsupported socially so I would think that we need the option 
for the client to keep contact with the third sector in a supportive role and to allow re-referral to 
ARC by workers in MH trained organisations such as MIND….Primary care will need some 
solid support for those clients who have completed therapy and are ready for discharge and this 
is when I would recommend a discharge case conference involving the key players.’ (GP, 
Peterborough) 
 

Response 
GP mental health leads have been involved in the redesign of the adult community services. Each 
locality team psychiatrist is attached to a number of GP surgeries – and is forming effective working 
relationships.  This supports GPs contacting ‘their’ locality consultant or the PDCS consultant 
psychiatrist directly for advice (also using CONFER – a secure messaging service).  In addition the 
PDCS will be liaising with GPs specifically about the PD pathway – to help explain the pathway and 
also to discuss specific patients. 
 
In addition the personality Disorder Community service duty team/crisis workers are available for 
advice to GPs regardless of whether the patient is current with the PD service or discharged. 
 

‘The proposed time limits on treatments in the consultation seem to be based on a 
misunderstanding of the evidence base. The document makes much about bringing in time-
limited evidence based treatments, as though the evidence supports the time limit. It does not! 
The research trials have not looked at what effect the time limit on treatment might have, but 
simply compare one treatment with another. The trials have to specify a limit on the length of 
treatments to be compared, but that does not mean that length of treatment is particularly to be 
recommended. Indeed most trials, especially those on Personality Disorders, observe that 
patients still suffer from significant symptoms at the end and recommend longer periods. 
Recognising this, the NICE guidance does not recommend particular time limits and the 
commissioning guidance even recommends providing long-term interventions and support’. 
(Collective response from Lifeworks service users and supporters) 

 
Response 
We believe that the interventions described can be delivered within the two year pathway across the 
Trust. We would like to be able to do more for longer but this would require additional resources. In 
order to monitor the effectiveness of the interventions and time scales we will monitor and evaluate the 
impact and outcomes (see section 7). It is also important to stress that the two year timescale reflects 
the evidence base for psychological interventions where trials have shown that a period of two years is 
effective. We recognise that NICE guidance does not generally set a timescale for duration of contact.  
 

‘We are of the view that applying the recovery model sensitively to a personality disorder 
service means ensuring that there is an acceptable level of support available to discharged 
service users that provides them with a fall-back option in the event of ongoing difficulties. This 
may enable these people to “stay recovered” for longer, and reduce their dependency on more 
labour-intensive services.  It would also help to prevent GPs referring their patients straight 
back into the specialist PD service.’ (Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee). 

 
Response 
We recognise that PD can persist over many years, and that discharge can be stressful. In general 
terms discharge planning will start as early as possible – discharge should be no surprise, and should 
be planned with those involved, service user, carer, other services involved where relevant and GP. 
The discharge plan should set out what needs to be done in the event of deterioration, and how the 
person’s care and support is to be ‘stepped down’ to less intensive support. 
 
Recovery is about enabling people to live well even with their condition. Staff from the Recovery 
College are involved in the co-production work. As part of this, sessions explaining Recovery have 

15



 

10 
 

been and will be held. These have gone some way to provide helpful information about what Recovery 
is and what it is not. This needs to be an ongoing process to help alleviate any misunderstandings. 
 
3.2    Need for social support interventions and opportunities to socialise 
 
Many respondents highlighted the importance of social support interventions as part of the service 
offer. Some expected this to be provided via the NHS, others accepted that opportunities to socialise 
could be provided outside the NHS, in the community. There was significant concern about the loss of 
Lifeworks which enabled people in Cambridge to access this kind of support: 
 

‘Socialisation is also very important for people to share their experience and how they cope with 
their condition.’  (Member of the public, Cambridge City) 
 
‘I do not react well to therapy so having social groups/recreations/cooking/walking etc helped 
me build important bonds with other patients and staff and be able to help me speak when in 
therapy I can not speak’. (Service user, South Cambs) 

 
‘The idea that the new pathway which involves coming in for therapy groups and then coming 
home with no socialisation or support frightens me’.  (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘The social aspect helps me to understand how to integrate with others as I tend to isolate 
myself at home.  I find it very difficult to leave my house and Lifeworks has given me the 
courage to do this.’  (Service user, South Cambs) 

 
‘It is evident that the proposed service model will not provide the level of social support that has 
been available previously…When in crisis, social support services can be a lifeline for those 
who really struggle.  Even if an individual is self-reliant and functioning reasonably well (e.g. 
working, managing a home, tenancy etc.), when in crisis they may need a higher level of 
support which should be available to them at short notice ….It is true that some people with PD 
(or features of PD) may require short-term and/or non-frequent interventions and contact.  But 
those with severe, enduring or complex PD should have regular contact with well co-ordinated 
NHS services that can meet their needs’. (Member of the public, Cambridge City) 
 
‘All we are asking for is an NHS day centre in Cambridge where we can go and socialise and 
feel safe and where there are staff to talk to when feeling bad.  All the day centres and halfway 
houses have been closed in Cambridge and there is nothing left! Lifeworks is the last one!’ 
(Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
Response 
The importance of socialising as a means of supporting a person’s recovery is recognised. To aid this, 
making sure that full use is made of the existing services and supports already provided in the 
community by working more effectively with the voluntary sector is essential, and to that end work will 
be taken forward to strengthen joint working with in particular the voluntary sector.  
 
In addition the joint proposal being developed will aim to bolster opportunities for accessing social 
contact.  
 
The closure of day centres has taken place over a number of years, and has been in line with national 
and local policy. As previously described, in recent years only Cambridge had the Lifeworks service. 
The agreement to sustain Lifeworks in Cambridge for a period of 5 years was in response to finding 
agreement to end the sit-in. It is acknowledged by all that having a service in Cambridge that does not 
exist elsewhere is inequitable. Therefore the aim of the joint project is to try and develop an agreed 
model of service – building on the CPFT pathways and services provided by other service providers, 
which can seek funding to implement across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.  
 

16



 

11 
 

During the consultation period there was considerable discussion about ‘Recovery’ and it was clear 
that there was a degree of misunderstanding about this a concept. Information has since been 
provided about this, but more needs to be done so that ‘Recovery’ is better understood. 
 
Another strong theme has been the need for support to ‘transition’ or move between services and 
settings. This issue applies to other groups of service users as well as to people with personality 
disorder. 
 
3.3    Greater equity welcomed but is the offer sufficient to meet needs? 
 
One of the main aims of the service redesign was to provide a more equitable service across the 
county, as Complex Cases was very much focused in Cambridge. Many people welcomed this wider 
focus.  

 
‘This will do a great deal for Peterborough where I have a GP surgery...Overall a wonderful 
proposal which improves access across the county in an equitable way, uses evidence based 
therapies and is money spent well.’ (GP, Peterborough) 
 
‘It is clear that a greater number of clients, from a larger geographical area can receive a well 
thought out service from appropriately skilled staff.’ (Health/social care professional, South 
Cambs) 
 
‘I have spent the last 3 months liaising with locality teams around the Trust, and it is clear that 
there are many service users who are not currently getting specialist support for their 
personality disorder’ (Health/social care professional, Cambridge City) 

 
However, many current service users questioned whether a service that was too thinly spread was cost 
efficient. For many, the proposed service would leave unmet needs, for example: 
 

- Insufficient MBT (concern about the timescales of interventions) 
- Group therapy not appropriate for some, need for more 1:1 support 
- Support to be available in people’s homes 
- Not enough psychotherapy provision 
- Not enough social support 
- 3 year pathway would be more effective 
- Services not provided by sufficiently skilled staff 
 

‘NOT enough psychological therapy provided.  All suitable service users should be offered an 
approach such as DBT or CAT, and not just when in crisis’. (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘Are (the services) efficient if they only half treat a greater number, which could actually make 
things worse?’ (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
Response 
The importance of making sure that the specialist service is available Trust wide is acknowledged and 
understood. There was a view expressed of a reduction of service in Cambridge, where complex cases 
and specifically Lifeworks has been in existence for longest, but that elsewhere in the county that the 
proposals are an improvement on current provision, particularly in Fenland where to date there has 
been very limited access to specialist personality disorder services.  
 
As mentioned previously, it is also important to note that this consultation was about the specialist PD 
pathway. People with personality disorder will also have contact with other CPFT services such as 
locality teams older people’s services, CAMH teams and acute care services.  
 

17



 

12 
 

In terms of the issue about MBT being insufficient and not in line with NICE guidance for the duration of 
therapy – to be clear the 12 week course relates only to the psycho-education package (MBTi). This is 
not the same as MBT therapy which will be for 18 months as indicated by NICE 

 
‘Given the down banding of the staff employed by the service, it is likely that most treatments will 
be offered by band 5 staff. It is highly unlikely that band 5 staff would have the training, 
skills and experience to achieve an acceptable level of competence in individual psychological 
therapies.’ (Collective response from Lifeworks service users and supporters). 

 
Response 
We are committed to all staff having the required training and expertise to deliver the interventions. In 
particular the 18 month MBT therapy will be delivered by a qualified therapist assisted by a  co-
facilitator who will have specific MBT training. It is important to note that staff are recruited not just of 
their technical skills, but also because of their interest and commitment to working with people with 
personality disorder.  

 
‘The talking therapy times appear to short for patients with long term complex mental health 
needs.  The new service does see a lot more patients but if the treatments are not effective 
there is going to be a revolving door system where discharged patients are going to seek more 
treatment soon after their two years of treatment ends’. (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
Response 
We believe that the approach described will be effective. As described elsewhere, we will monitor 
effectiveness of the pathway to see if any changes or modifications are needed. Getting feedback from 
service users and carers will be key in helping evaluate.  
 

‘Evidence based support - NICE guidelines clearly state that brief interventions of 3 months or 
less are not suitable for people with personality difficulties. It's unclear from this document 
whether some of the CBT input might be below this threshold. Our experience tells that it is not 
just insufficient but potentially dangerous to work with people in short term interventions - it can 
bring very challenging issues to the surface and undermine existing coping strategies, without 
time to explore, address or replace these. There is strong evidence for DBT but what is offered 
here is a kind of DBT lite, just the skills groups rather than the other components of one to one 
and out of hours contact with therapist which enable people to make use of the skills learned.   
The question not asked here is whether it is best to make a genuinely life changing difference 
through intensive treatment which significantly improves quality of life and reduces use of 
services for the rest of someone's life, for a few people or lower impact support which keeps 
people trapped in the difficulties of personality disorder and more likely to need ongoing 
support, but available to more people. (Service user-led organisation).’ 

 
Response as previously stated, in terms of the length of therapy MBT will be for 18 months as 
indicated by NICE. The team would like to be able to offer more psychological interventions to a larger 
number, but what has been estimated is what the team should be able to provide and sustain.  
 
Response 
The proposals were generally welcomed in areas other than Cambridge (due to the loss of Lifeworks), 
as in Fenland, Huntingdonshire and Peterborough, the new service enhances the range of 
interventions available building on what is already available from the locality teams and acute care 
service.  
 
3.4    Service users need to be treated as individuals. Offer seems rigid and too medical-driven 
 
Linked to the concerns about lack of social support, there was concern that the proposed service 
model was too rigid and medically driven. Others welcomed the therapeutic approach.  

 

18



 

13 
 

‘This looks much more like a modern and effective PD service than the model that it replaces.  
In particular the extremely low numbers treated and the geographical limits were major flaws in 
the previous system.  The numbers treated, and the emphasis on lower banding and use of 
groups is the right way to go in my view.  My only criticism of the new model is that it looks 
expert focussed.  While DBT and MBT both include some ideas of empowerment and patient 
led interventions, they tend to reinforce the 'I know what's wrong so do what I say if you want to 
get better' model.  It would be useful to have some explicit indication of how the risk of the 
sometimes disempowering expert driven model might be mitigated e.g. patient involvement in 
oversight and planning, use of mentoring in group work etc.’  (Health professional from other 
Trust) 
 
‘Overall, while the proposed pathway is clearly presented, and is rational, it appears to lack a 
‘whole person’ approach. The pathway seems to opt for a good deal of service 
compartmentalization, which gives the impression that service users will be on the receiving 
end of ‘having things done to them’ on the basis of specific individual symptoms, rather than 
working from the basis of treating them as whole people experiencing a range of difficulties, 
and participating in their own recovery process; working on equal terms with clinicians wherever 
possible, and with their peers in group’. (The Group Therapy Centre) 
 
‘The idea that the new pathway which involves coming in for therapy groups and then coming 
home with no socialisation or support frightens me.  This is an important part of my treatment at 
Lifeworks.  The idea of a rigid regime is very off putting and does not feel welcoming.’ (Service 
user, Cambridge City) 
 
‘It is good that a service will be available to a greater number of people but much of the 
proposals sound superficial, are concerned with numbers and so called measurable outcomes, 
rather than primarily viewing the service user as an individual. Service user, South Cambs) 

 
‘I agree that the PD service should be treatment driven.  However, not everyone in the service 
is ready for intense treatment and they should be offered individual support until they are 
ready.’ (Service user, Huntingdonshire) 

 
Response 
From the teams perspective the pathway is not seen as medically driven as it has a strong multi-
professional structure that includes nursing, occupational therapy and psychology. The current PD 
pathway lead role is covered by a psychologist. In addition the crisis support is much strengthened and 
this will look to support the person and family experiencing a crisis from a number of perspectives not 
just from medical perspective. 
 
More broadly we agree that empowerment is an essential part of the model and this is definitely the 
intention. The service user being central to the care and support and having control over their care is 
seen as core to the approach. Further, the staffing model includes Peer Support Workers (staff with 
lived experience of mental health problems) and support workers who’s primary aim is to support 
service users link into and access community resources/facilities. 
 
The team will aim to work collaboratively and in partnership with both the service user and carer, and 
as mentioned, fully recognises the importance of service user and carer empowerment and their role in 
being responsible and involved in their care. The service will monitor service user experience and have 
developed a questionnaire based on the guidance within the White paper ‘ no longer a diagnosis of 
exclusion’. 
 
3.5    Consultation unsatisfactory, and information not clear. 
 
There was dissatisfaction and resentment with the way the proposals had been communicated and 
also the extent to which the new pathway was being implemented. 
 

19



 

14 
 

‘The consultation process prior to the proposed closure of Lifeworks was seriously deficient, 
and out of line with NICE guidance and DH commissioning guidance for this patient group, 
which is clear that comprehensive consultation over a long period of time is necessary.’  
(Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee) 

 
‘The insulting way the proposal to end the service was made has meant that service users have 
lost trust in staff and those responsible for running it.’  (Service user, Cambridge City) 
‘There is much in the Consultation document that has already been, or is in the process of 
being, implemented. This undermines the whole purpose of the Consultation.’ (Collective 
response from Lifeworks service users and supporters). 

 
Response 
As previously acknowledged, we agree that we should have done better initially with the plans for 
Lifeworks in Cambridge. Through the engagement work done via the consultation and agreement to 
end the sit-in, there is a much improved understanding by all involved on the perspectives and views 
held. The joint work being done to form a joint proposal is also helping strengthen this.  
 
The consultation paper and the consultation process were agreed with the CCG with significant input 
from the Cambridgeshire health committee working group and Cambridgeshire HealthWatch prior to 
the consultation paper being published.  
 
Aspects of the new pathway as defined in 2013 adult community service redesign have been 
implemented, this was because there are large numbers of people requiring a service and to have 
delayed implementation would have meant to deny access to any specialist service. It should be 
acknowledged, and staff commended in both the adult locality teams and PD specialist teams for the 
huge efforts made to maintain care and interventions as far as possible.  
 
3.6    Service user participation in service design. 
 
Linked to the quality of the consultation itself, there was also feedback about the involvement of service 
users in designing services. 
 

‘Include patients’ opinions in the design of the service, we know best!’ (Service user, South 
Cambs) 
 
‘Both the NICE guidelines and the commissioning guidelines recommend giving users some 
participation in the design of services and the choice of treatments. The commissioning 
guidelines even recommend therapeutic communities in which users have much of the 
responsibility for the running of the service. There is little in the proposal about how users will 
be involved in the service and the proposal to close Lifeworks would suggest this was not part 
of the vision underlying the proposals.’ (Collective response from Lifeworks service users and 
supporters) 

 
Response 
We recognise that there should have been much better involvement of people affected by these 
changes early on. The work on co-production will hopefully redress some of the impact of this and build 
a more effective approach to service design and also in making difficult decisions about how to make 
best use of the limited resources available.  
 
3.7    Review and evaluation of new pathway 
 
Some respondents and the Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee in particular, argued 
strongly for a robust review and evaluation of the new pathway: 
 

‘Service monitoring and review is particularly important in view of the lack of clarity around the 
numbers of patients receiving the different types of support, and the precise service 

20



 

15 
 

specification.  The new service model should enable much greater transparency and recording 
of treatments on the pathway, and full use should be made of this by CPFT and the CCG. A 
service review point should be agreed as part of the response to the public consultation.   

 
There is a need to monitor access times in particular alongside outcome measures, particularly 
in relation to the 12-week and the 18-month MBT programmes. It is also important to monitor 
re-referrals to the pathway and use of the crisis team in considering the effectiveness of the 
new PD service.’  (Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee) 

 
It is worth noting however, that there may be different perceptions of effectiveness and measures of 
success: 
 

‘But how do you measure success? This is critical to the whole concept of Payment by Results. 
You have to be able to quantify people coming into the system and people being discharged at 
the other end. But Lifeworks doesn’t work that way. ..Lifeworks enables many of them to have 
personal lives, to work, to socialise, and contribute to society, without the constant acute 
interventions, attendance at A&E and worse, which would undoubtedly otherwise occur. 
However, such a ‘result’ is very hard to quantify, which is why Lifeworks apparently does not fit 
the ‘payment by results’ pattern, and is being scrapped.’ (Collective response from Lifeworks 
service users and supporters) 

 
Response 
We agree that there should be regular review and monitoring of the service, involving partners in this, 
especially the CCG and local authorities. We are keen to explore the possibility of undertaking some 
research or service evaluation into the service model, including whatever design comes out of the co-
production work. Part of the monitoring will aim to include impact on other health providers such as 
accident and emergency departments.  
 
3.8    Funding for mental health services and recognition of longer term savings to the public 
purse. Impact on voluntary sector 
 
In terms of cost-effectiveness, many respondents highlighted the need to consider this from a holistic 
perspective rather than just in the context of the PD service, recognising the potential impact on 
emergency services, the voluntary sector and other agencies: 

 
‘Positive changes are being made but it is not enough.  PD is still a diagnosis of exclusion and 
this is not acceptable.  Vulnerable people are being let down by services due to funding.  Too 
little community care causes more A&E visits and more inpatient stays which are both traumatic 
to the individual and expensive for the Trust.’ (Service user, Cambridge City) 

 
‘I agree with the crisis support team/specialists being extended but feel that on going life long 
support is absolutely necessary for most people with BPD (including myself) and is more cost 
effective in the long run. MH services are woefully underfunded.’ (Service user, South Cambs) 
 
‘Not having routine and expertise of the current service I fear i may use A&E and hospitals 
more than i have done since being in the service for 6 years.’ (Service user, South Cambs) 
 
‘We are concerned about the level of resourcing for CPFT, particularly in view of the current 
disparity between the level of funding provided to acute hospitals through the payment by 
results system, and the level of funding for more preventive community based mental health 
services financed through block contracts.    
 
Evidence that would show the true cost of PD patients to the wider health and social care 
system might help to make the case for greater investment across the system.’ 
(Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee) 
 

21



 

16 
 

‘If the additional cost of closing Lifeworks to the acute mental health budget, acute hospital care 
including A&E, police, social services etc. are taken into account, then surely it is a truly false 
economy?’ (Collective response from Lifeworks service users and supporters) 
 
‘We are very concerned that there may not be sufficient extra capacity in the voluntary sector to 
absorb significant additional pressures’. (Cambridgeshire County Council Health Committee) 

Response 
We are also concerned about the level of funding provided to mental health in Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough. Whilst we believe that the redesigned PD service allows CPFT to provide as good a 
service to the greatest number as possible, it is fair to say that mental health services (both NHS and 
voluntary sector) and GP services are under considerable strain. We will continue to work with partners 
especially commissioners to try and improve funding for mental health, and to find innovative ways of 
making best use of available funding.  
 
Payment by results may provide a fairer funding mechanism but this is yet to be tested locally. 
 
We are keen to see if a research or evaluation project could be established to look at the impact and 
possible cost savings the new pathway may have, and to see to what extent there are system wide 
savings and improvements in outcomes  
 
3.9     Specific questions and responses 
 
3.9.1  What is being done to support young people who may not have a diagnosis, but who are 
displaying characteristics or who appear to be at risk of a PD diagnosis in future? 
 
Response 
The service currently works and will continue to work on an individual case by case basis with CAMH 
teams and also with local authority ‘looked after children’ services. This normally involves the child’s 
care team making contact with the specialist PD team prior to the child’s 18th birthday, in order to plan 
the transition at 18 years of age. Referrals of this type are prioritised by the service. 
 
More broadly there is a willingness to look at service development opportunities in the future. 
 
In addition, staff from the personality disorder service have provided training to a voluntary sector 
organisation, and would be happy to be commissioned to provide more training. 
 
3.9.2  Who is taking responsibility for Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults in the PD pathway? 
 
Response 
Safeguarding responsibilities will follow existing agreed policies and procedures within CPFT. 
 
3.9.3  Will clinicians be skilled to provide care packages? 
 
Response 
As previously described a key part of the pathway is to make sure that staff have sufficient skills and 
capacity to carryout the pathway interventions.  
 
3.9.4  Who is diagnosing PD to enable people to come directly from ARC to the PD team? 
 
Response 
ARC work closely with CPFT teams to make sure that they triage effectively to make sure that the 
person gets to the right team when needed. The referral process will be one aspect monitored as the 
pathway is implemented.  
 
3.9.5  What is the role of social workers and how does it fit with social worker role in locality 
teams? 

22



 

17 
 

 
Response  
We were pleased that as part of the new service model, Cambridgeshire LA transferred resources to 
fund a specific social work post into the PD service. The post holder will work as a core member of the 
services providing expertise and support within the team.  
 
3.9.6  Who is responsible for care management when patient transfers over from other team? 
 
Response 
Service users with the specialist service will all be managed under the CPA (Care Programme 
Approach). 
 
3.9.7  Who holds risk at the end of the PD pathway? 
 
Response 
The management of risks will be part of the discharge plan. Responsibilities of those involved, 
including the GP will be clear at that point. 
 
3.9.8  What is meant by "Huntingdon has limited access to the Cambridge service"? 
 
Response 
This is largely a historical comment – reflecting that in the past some Huntingdon residents were able 
to access services in Cambridge. The now model should reduce significantly the need for this in the 
future. 
 
3.9.9    Where will specialist personality disorder services be provided for service users in 
Huntingdon?  
 
Response 
CPFT has a dedicated mental health community centre in Huntingdon (Newtown centre). Where 
additional space is needed the service will aim to find this. 
 
3.9.10  How is the social work post funded? 
 
Response 
The social work post is funded by Cambridgeshire County Council.  
 
3.9.11  How will; 

 the service link to current social work input and meet the Local Authority duties regarding 

assessment and care planning? 

 the service work with PCC Target Operating Model and Customer Journey? 

 the service work with PCC ASC and accommodation providers and employment services? 

 the proposal aid the aspirations of the Crisis Concordat and preventing people accessing A&E 

or being detained on S136? 

 
Response 
The PD service and the Community Division will liaise with local authority officers to consider all of the 
above points. We anticipate that the PD service will work with local authorities in line with the approach 
used with other CPFT services and as agreed as part of the section 75 agreements.  
 
3.9.12  How will this group access advocacy services? 
 
Response 
Service users will access advocacy as per current arrangements. Information on advocacy will be 
routinely provided to service users. 

23



 

18 
 

3.9.13  How is this service interdependent with other services/organisations? 
 
Response 
The service recognises the importance of good joint working with other organisations. As noted, CPFT 
is just one organisation working with people with a diagnosis of PD. Regular meetings both at clinical 
and managerial level will aim to build on the existing joint working. Also, Voluntary sector 
organisational are involved in the production of the joint proposal. 
 
3.9.14  Will the service achieve recovery outcomes? 
 

 sustaining or improving personal relationships 

 improved stability in social environment (housing, finances etc.) 

 independent lifestyles, integrated in the community 

 increase in time spent out of prison 

 positive steps towards valued activity through work, education, employment preparation, 

recreation etc. 

 improved self-management and self-determination 

 
Response 
Some of these will be reflected in PbR outcomes, others from useful areas to monitor as the service is 
implemented. The capacity of the service will affect the ability to influence these outcomes.  
 
3.10     Specific assurances requested by the CCC Health Committee 
 
3.10.1 That GPs will have access to CPFT's crisis team. 
 
Response 
As currently, GPs will have access to CRHTs and where needed, inpatient care.  
 
3.10.2  Anyone discharged will have 3 appointments over the course of a year. 
 
Responce 
The three appointments is part of the pathway post-discharge. The effectiveness of this intervention 
will be monitored.  
 
3.10.3  Fenland residents will not have to travel to another district to access higher-intensity 
interventions. 
 
Response 
This question is about travel to access service.  The PD team are currently exploring locations in 
Fenland that aims to keep travel to a minimum, but the rural nature of the Fenland patch means that 
travel, as in other localities is necessary for some users. 
Fenland will receive the same level of access as the other areas.  
 
3.10.4  50% of service users would receive a 12 week psycho-educational (MBTi) programme. 
The other 50% of service users would receive a 6 week psycho-educational programme. 
 
Response 
We confirm that all service users will be able to access psycho-educational programmes. The length of 
this will depend on what aspect of the service they are signposted to. The shortened programme will 
apply to those people accessing the largely occupational therapy element of the service. The longer 12 
week psycho-educational programme will apply to those who are identified as going onto MBT therapy. 
Whilst the six week programme is seen as beneficial, if resources allowed the team would like to 
provide everyone with the same level of Psycho-educational therapy. 

24



 

19 
 

3.10.5  No patient on the PD pathway would receive services for fewer than 6 months in total. 

 
Response  
This would be in the case except where this is shorter by agreement or where the service users does 
not want to or is unable to continue with the service. 
 
4.  NEXT STEPS 
 
We are very greatful for the time and effort people have made in providing feedback to this consultaion. 
We are particularly greatful to the Local Council Health Committee subgroups, HealthWatch in both 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, and CCG for their support with the consultaion process and in 
providing overview of it. 
 
In terms of next steps; 
 
4.1 The CPFT two year pathway as described will be rolled out across Peterborough and 
Cambridgeshire. 
 
4.2 The CPFT service will be known as Personality Disorder Community Service 
 
4.3 The project group overseeing the co-production of a joint proposal will continue to meet to as 
needed and if successful oversee implementation of the proposals. Once developed, the proposals will 
go to the CCG and local authorities for consideration. Other funding routes will also be considered. 
Lifeworks in Cambridge remains open as per the agreement reached. 
 
4.4 The implementation of the new service will be monitored on a regular basis to evaluate impact and 
the importance of identifying opportunities for research or evaluation is understood. The monitoring 
arrangements will be formulated together with the CCG.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 

20 
 

Appendix 1.  
5. Summary of responses 
 
Question 1. To what extent do you think the proposals help to achieve the following aims? 
 

 Negative 
impact 

Neither 
positive nor 
negative 

Positive 
impact 

To use resources as efficiently as 
possible 
 

45% 23% 32% 

To meet the needs of patients across 
the whole area served by the Trust in 
an equitable way 

32% 23% 45%% 

To provide services which are 
recognised as effective (i.e. there is 
evidence to prove that they are 
effective) 

40% 27% 33% 

To maximise the number of people who 
can be seen by the service 

29% 19% 52% 

To provide a service that supports 
recovery (see glossary at the end for 
what we mean by recovery) 

39% 24% 37% 

 
Question 2. Which of the following statements do you agree with the most? 
 

The personality disorder 
service should maintain 
regular contact with PD 
patients throughout their 
lives. 

The personality disorder service should 
support PD patients for a limited period of 
time until they are able to manage their 
symptoms themselves and get back in 
control of their lives. 

Unsure / Can’t 
say 

53% 
 

30% 17% 

 
Question 3. To what extent do you agree with the Trust’s proposals for the PD service? 
 

Agree overall Agree with some 
aspects 

Disagree overall Unsure 

25% 
 

35% 38% 2% 

 
Question 4. In what way do you feel the proposed changes affect you? 
 

Negative 
Impact 

Neither 
Negative nor 
Positive 

Positive impact Unsure Not Applicable 
to me 

48% 
 

2% 15% 17% 19% 

 
Question 5. Which part of the county do you live in? 
 

Cambridge 
City 

South 
Cambs 

East 
Cambs 

Huntingdonshire Fenland Peterborough Other 

48% 30% 4% 8% 2% 6% 2% 

26



 

21 
 

 
Question 6. Are you currently a service user of CPFT or another mental health organisation? 
 

Yes No 

53% 47% 

 
Question 7. Do you currently work for or within the NHS? 
 

Yes No 

29% 71% 

 
Question 8. Are you: 
 

Providing your own response Providing a response for someone else 

100% 0% 

 
Question 9. Are you responding as: 
 

A member of the public A health or social care 
professional 

On behalf of an 
organisation 

61% 23% 16% 

 
Question 10. Please tell us your age: 
 

21-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 Rather not say 

13% 31% 13% 21% 15% 8% 

 
Question 11. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? 
 

Yes No Rather not say 

58% 40% 2% 

 
If yes, do you have a: 
 

 Yes No 

Physical Impairment 21% 79% 

Sensory Impairment 7% 93% 

Learning Disability 0% 100% 

Mental Health Condition 
(Long Term) 

60% 40% 

Other Health Condition 
(Long Term) 

16% 84% 

 
Question 12. How would you describe your ethnic background? 
 

Any other 
mixed 
background 

Any other 
white 
background 

Rather not say White British White Irish 

2% 2% 11% 83% 2% 

 
Question 13. Gender: 
 

Male Female Rather not say 

23% 63% 15% 

 

27



 

22 
 

Question 14. Do you now, or have you ever considered yourself to be transgender? 
 

Yes No Rather not say 

0% 78% 22% 

 
Question 15. Religion or Beliefs: 
 

Agnosticism Atheism Buddhism Christianity Pagan Spiritualism No 
Religion 
or 
Belief 

Unsure Rather 
not 
say 

2% 11% 7% 37% 2% 2% 15% 2% 22% 

 
Question 16. Sexual Orientation 
 

Heterosexual Bisexual Gay man Other Rather not say 

71% 2% 2% 2% 23% 

 
Question 17. Are you currently providing support to a partner, child, relative, friend or neighbour who 
could not manage without your help and/or support? 
 

Yes No Rather not say 

30% 55% 15% 

 
To what extent do you think the proposals help to achieve the following aims? 
 

 To use resources as efficiently as possible 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

blank Total 

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 10% 80% 0% 100% 

Organisation 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% 

Public 63% 22% 11% 4% 100% 

Grand Total 41% 20% 30% 9% 100% 

 

 To meet the needs of patients across the whole area served 
by the Trust in an equitable way 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
Impact 

blank  

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 0% 90% 0% 100% 

Organisation 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% 

Public 48% 19% 30% 4% 100% 

Grand Total 32% 16% 43% 9% 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



 

23 
 

 To provide services which are recognised as effective (i.e. 
there is evidence to prove that they are effective) 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

blank Grand 
Total 

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 10% 80% 0% 100% 

Organisation 14% 29% 29% 29% 100% 

Public 44% 26% 15% 15% 100% 

Grand Total 32% 23% 32% 14% 100% 

 

 To maximise the number of people who can be seen by the 
service 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
Impact 

Grand 
Total 

Health or Social Care 
Professional 

10% 10% 80% 100% 

Organisation 0% 60% 40% 100% 

Public 35% 19% 46% 100% 

Grand Total 24% 22% 54% 100% 

 
 
 

 To provide a service that supports recovery 

  Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

Total 

Health or Social Care 
Professional 

0% 20% 80% 100% 

Organisation 0% 25% 75% 100% 

Public 60% 24% 16% 100% 

Grand Total 38% 23% 38% 100% 

 
 

 To what extent do you agree with the Trust's proposals for the PD 
service? 

 Agree 
overall 

Agree with 
some 
aspects 

Disagree 
overall 

Unsure Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

60% 40% 0% 0% 100% 

Organisation 40% 40% 0% 20% 100% 

Public 11% 33% 56% 0% 100% 

Grand Total 26% 36% 36% 2% 100% 

 
 

 In what way do you feel the proposed changes affect you? 

  Negative 
Impact 

Neither 
negative 
nor positive 

Not 
applicable 
to me 

Positive 
impact 

Unsure Total 

Health or 
Social Care 

0% 10% 40% 30% 20% 100% 

29



 

24 
 

Professional 

Organisation 25% 0% 50% 0% 25% 100% 

Public 63% 0% 11% 7% 19% 100% 

Grand Total 44% 2% 22% 12% 20% 100% 

 
 
 

 Which of the following statements do you agree with the most? 
“The personality disorder service should maintain regular contact with 
PD patients throughout their lives.” 
“The personality disorder service should support PD patients for a 
limited period of time until they are able to manage their symptoms 
themselves and get back in control of their lives.” 
 Tick the one that most closely reflects your views 

 Limited period Throughout Unsure/can't say Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

80% 0% 20% 100% 

Organisation 50% 25% 25% 100% 

Public 15% 65% 19% 100% 

Grand Total 35% 45% 20% 100% 

 
To what extent do you think the proposals help to achieve the following aims? 

 To use resources as efficiently as possible 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

blank Total 

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 10% 80% 0% 100% 

Organisation 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% 

Public 63% 22% 11% 4% 100% 

Grand Total 41% 20% 30% 9% 100% 

 
 

 To meet the needs of patients across the whole area served 
by the Trust in an equitable way 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
Impact 

blank  

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 0% 90% 0% 100% 

Organisation 0% 29% 29% 43% 100% 

Public 48% 19% 30% 4% 100% 

Grand Total 32% 16% 43% 9% 100% 

 
 

 To provide services which are recognised as effective (i.e. 
there is evidence to prove that they are effective) 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

blank Grand 
Total 

Health or Social 
Care Professional 

10% 10% 80% 0% 100% 

Organisation 14% 29% 29% 29% 100% 

Public 44% 26% 15% 15% 100% 

Grand Total 32% 23% 32% 14% 100% 

 

30



 

25 
 

 
 
 
 

 To maximise the number of people who can be seen by the 
service 

 Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
Impact 

Grand 
Total 

Health or Social Care 
Professional 

10% 10% 80% 100% 

Organisation 0% 60% 40% 100% 

Public 35% 19% 46% 100% 

Grand Total 24% 22% 54% 100% 

 
 

 To provide a service that supports recovery 

  Negative 
Impact 

Neither Positive 
impact 

Total 

Health or Social Care 
Professional 

0% 20% 80% 100% 

Organisation 0% 25% 75% 100% 

Public 60% 24% 16% 100% 

Grand Total 38% 23% 38% 100% 

 

 To what extent do you agree with the Trust's proposals for the PD 
service? 

 Agree 
overall 

Agree with 
some 
aspects 

Disagree 
overall 

Unsure Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

60% 40% 0% 0% 100% 

Organisation 40% 40% 0% 20% 100% 

Public 11% 33% 56% 0% 100% 

Grand Total 26% 36% 36% 2% 100% 

 
 

 In what way do you feel the proposed changes affect you? 

  Negative 
Impact 

Neither 
negative 
nor positive 

Not 
applicable 
to me 

Positive 
impact 

Unsure Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

0% 10% 40% 30% 20% 100% 

Organisation 25% 0% 50% 0% 25% 100% 

Public 63% 0% 11% 7% 19% 100% 

Grand Total 44% 2% 22% 12% 20% 100% 

 
 
 
 

31



 

26 
 

  Which of the following statements do you agree with the most? 
“The personality disorder service should maintain regular contact with 
PD patients throughout their lives.” 
“The personality disorder service should support PD patients for a 
limited period of time until they are able to manage their symptoms 
themselves and get back in control of their lives.” 
 Tick the one that most closely reflects your views 
 

 Limited period Throughout Unsure/can't say Total 

Health or 
Social Care 
Professional 

80% 0% 20% 100% 

Organisation 50% 25% 25% 100% 

Public 15% 65% 19% 100% 

Grand Total 35% 45% 20% 100% 

 
 
 

32



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 5

11 NOVEMBER 2014 Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Corporate Affairs                                  

Contact Officer(s) – Jessica Bawden, Director of Corporate Affairs CCG
Contact Details – email: jessica.bawden@nhs.net

CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
UPDATE 

1. PURPOSE

To provide the Commission with the requested update on the following services:

1. Minor illness and Injury Unit Peterborough.
2. The future CCG Commissioning Intentions for specialist personality disorder services 
3. To update the scrutiny commission on the preferred bidder from the Older Peoples’ 

healthcare and adult community services procurement programme.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission:

a) Note the update on the Minor Illness and Injury Unit Peterborough
b) To note the content of the recent CCG Governing Body paper on Specialist Personality 

Disorder Services and the ongoing work arising from its recommendations, especially in 
relation to addressing the current inequality in access to specialist personality disorder 
services across the CCG.

c) Note the update on the preferred bidder from the Older Peoples’ healthcare and adult 
community services procurement programme.

 
3.. UPDATE ON MINOR ILLNESS AND INJURY UNIT PETERBOROUGH

This report provides an update on the Minor Injury and Illness Unit (MIIU) since it opened on 1st 
October 2014.

3.1. BACKGROUND

Following extensive consultation in 2011/12 Peterborough Primary Care Trust closed the  Alma 
Road GP led walk in centre, and the Nurse led walk in Centre based at the City Care Centre 
and replaced it with a GP led Minor Injury and Illness Unit (MIIU), also based in the City Care 
Centre.  The MIIU at the City Care Centre opened its doors on the 1st October 2013.

3.2. KEY POINTS

3.2.1

3.2.2

The MIIU has managed 46224 patient presentations between the period of Oct 2013 and Aug 
2014.  Of these 34.15% are aged under 18 years, 67.28% are aged 18 years and above.   The 
busiest days are Saturday, Sunday and Monday, and busiest times for the unit between 10am – 
noon, 4pm – 7pm.

Most attendances are seen by advanced nurse practitioners/emergency care practitioners 
(88%) with the remaining 12% seen by the GPs.  The vast majority of the attendances are 

33

mailto:jessica.bawden@nhs.net


3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.3.8

minor illnesses - 66% of all attendances are dealt with via advice and guidance, 21.5% receive 
a prescription or are administered medication, while the remaining 12.5% are treated for a 
minor injury.

Onward referrals to A&E are low, ranging from 2.62% to 4.37% of all attendances.

All the key A&E quality indicators are delivered well within the expected targets, with times from 
arrival to start of treatment in August reported at 24:47 minutes (target median wait < 60 
minutes) and 95% of attendances being seen, treated and discharged within 2 and a half hours.

Average monthly A&E attendances at Peterborough City Hospital (April – July) in 2014/15 are 
up by 8.3% compared with 2013/14:

A&E Attendances
Average Attends 

2013/14
Average Attends 

2014/15 YTD
Change Change %

Total 7,572 8,201 629 8.3%

Average monthly A&E attendances at Peterborough City Hospital (April – July ) in 2014/15 for 
minor HRGs have increased by 12.1% compared with an increase of 5.8% in other HRGs, and 
it is clear that much of this minor activity could have been treated in the MIIU but patients are  
choosing to attend the hospital.

A&E Attendance by 
grouped HRG:

Average Attends 
2013/14

Average Attends 
2014/15 YTD

Change Change %

Minor HRGs 3,012 3,375 363 12.1%
Other HRGs 4,560 4,826 266 5.8%

HRG – Health resource group – is the tariff attached to any activity in the Trust. It is a currency 
so we pay for activity at a HRG level and each HRG has an associated price. We have seen an 
increase in the lower cost activity in the hospital and a smaller increase in the more expensive 
activity.

The Choose Well campaign is underway, and has increased its focus, in September, to 
reinforce messages from last year’s campaign to redirect patients to the most appropriate 
service to meet their needs.  The campaign is focussing on parents with young children, 
migrant workers, commuters/students, and older people.  A survey is currently being 
undertaken in all WICs/MIIUs/A&E and GP practices. The survey asks patients if they know 
where they could attend with specific health needs, why they are attending the service they are 
now, and where best the CCG can promote the Choose Well messages.  

Further work is being undertaken with Lincolnshire Community Health Services (LCHS) to 
agree a programme of work which will support the move to the MIIU of more minor activity from 
A&E, and align with the Choose Well campaign to signpost patients to more appropriate 
services such as their GPs and local Pharmacists.

3.3 IMPLICATIONS

The Minor Injury and Illness unit (MIIU) has a key role to play in providing easily accessible 
urgent care alternatives for patients instead of them attending A&E.  The CCG is working with 
the LCHS to ensure that more patients use the MIIU in preference to attending A&E with minor 
illnesses and injuries.  This work will be in conjunction with the CCG Choose Well campaign.  

3.4. NEXT STEPS

The CCG will agree service delivery improvement plans with LCHS via their contract to support 
the transfer of more appropriate patients to the MIIU.

34



Healthwatch Peterborough have received several comments on the MIIU. We will be visiting the 
MIIU with Healthwatch Peterborough on 19 November to observe the service.

4. LOCAL PERSONALITY DISORDER SERVICES 

4.1. BACKGROUND

This paper provides an update and in particular highlights the recommendations as to future 
CCG Commissioning Intentions agreed by the CCG Governing Body at its public meeting held 
on 16th September, 2014. 
There was consultation during June/July 2014 conducted by Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Foundation Trust (CPFT)  in relation to their proposed closure of the “Lifeworks” service in 
Cambridge. 

The Joint Working Group recently established with representatives of both Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Health Scrutiny Committees will ensure that members are regularly updated as 
the implementation of the recommendations recently endorsed by the CCG Governing Body in 
relation to personality disorder services are implemented. 

4.2. KEY ISSUES

The consensus view of Local Commissioning Groups and LCG GP mental health leads as to 
the way forward is set out in paragraphs 3.9 and 3.10 of the attached Governing Body paper. 
The two key recommendations are set out in paragraph 3.11.  In summary these are:-

 the available CCG resource to provide specialist expertise in personality disorders must be 
distributed equitably across the CCG area; 

This requirement has been re-stated in the CCG’s Commissioning Intentions for 2015/16, 
and is being taken forward with CPFT as part of our contract negotiation process for 
2015/16. 

 the acknowledged gaps in services supporting people recently discharged from all specialist 
mental health services should be addressed via the re-design process being established to 
deliver the CCG’s Five-Year Plan. This is an issue common to all mental health pathways 
locally and it would not make sense to address this for personality disorder pathways in 
isolation;

The CCG has established a “Mental Health Working Group” jointly with both Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Health Committees to ensure that as re-design proceeds both Committees 
are kept regularly updated and have the opportunity to input to the process. 

4.3 IMPLICATIONS

This report has implications city-wide. 

4.4. NEXT STEPS

The CCG will be taking forward the recommendations as set out in this paper. 

4.5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

The following paper is attached: 

 Appendix A CCG Governing Body paper 16th September 2014

35



5. UPDATE ON OLDER PEOPLES’ PROGRAMME PREFERED BIDDER

5.1 BACKGROUND

The CCG consulted on proposals to improve older peoples’ healthcare and adult community 
services from march to June 2014. The recommendations from this consultation were 
presented to the bidders in the procurement process so that their final submissions would 
reflect the feedback received from the public and key stakeholders during this consultation. 
These final submissions were then evaluated and the preferred bidder was announced on 1 
October 2014.

5.2 KEY ISSUES

UnitingCare Partnership has been selected as the Preferred Bidder to improve older people’s 
healthcare and adult community services across Cambridgeshire, Peterborough and parts of 
Northamptonshire and Hertfordshire. 

UnitingCare Partnership is a consortium of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation 
Trust with Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.

As the Lead Provider for these services UnitingCare Partnership will be responsible for 
ensuring care is much better coordinated. They will provide adult community health services 
and hold the budget for the following services: 

 Urgent care for adults aged over 65 including inpatients as well as A&E services 

 Mental Health Services for people aged over 65 

 Adult (all people over 18) community health services for example, district nursing, 
rehabilitation and therapy after injury or illness, speech and language therapy, care for 
patients with complex wounds, support for people with respiratory disease or diabetes 

 Other health services which support the care of people aged over 65. 

Commonly NHS contracts are just one or two years in length. This contract is different in that it 
is a five-year contract, giving the UnitingCare Partnership time to invest in and transform 
services for the better.

5.3 NEXT STEPS

UnitingCare Partnership will spend the next five months preparing and putting everything in 
place to be able to start delivering services on 1 April 2015, the expected start date for the new 
older people’s pathway and adult community services.

UnitingCare Partnership are happy to meet with Peterborough Health Scrutiny Commission at a 
future date to be arranged.

36



CCG Governing Body Meeting in Public 16 September 2014 
Agenda Item 2.2  Page 1 

 

 
MEETING:   GOVERNING BODY MEETING IN PUBLIC 
  
AGENDA ITEM: 2.2 
  
DATE:   16 SEPTEMBER 2014 
  
TITLE:  FUTURE CCG COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS FOR SPECIALIST 

PERSONALITY DISORDER SERVICES  
  
FROM:     DR EMMA TIFFIN 

CCG GP CLINICAL LEAD FOR MENTAL HEALTH 
  

FOR:    APPROVAL 
 

 
1. ISSUE 
 
1.1 The Governing Body will be aware of a range of issues that have arisen during 2014 in 

relation to local specialist pathways for people with personality disorder. This paper 
seeks Governing Body endorsement for recommendations agreed by the Local 
Commissioning Group (LCG) GP Mental Health Leads and the Clinical and 
Management Executive Team (CMET) as to future CCG commissioning intentions for 
these services.   

 
 
2. STRATEGIC AIMS/EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY GOALS AND CCG ASSURANCE 

FRAMEWORK REFERENCE 
  

2.1 This paper links to Strategic Aim 1 - Quality and Patient Safety 
 
2.2 This paper also links to EDS Goal 2 – Improved Patient Access and Experience.  

 
 

3. BACKGROUND, KEY POINTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 There have been discussions locally since January 2013 between CCG/LCG GP 

mental health commissioning leads and the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS 
Foundation Trust (CPFT) to review local community-based mental health services in 
order to provide them closer to primary care and improve links with GPs and 
community services. The most important requirement of the CCG as CPFT’s main 
commissioner has consistently been that any new service model ensures equitable 
access to all commissioned services throughout the CCG area.  

 
3.2 As part of these discussions, it was agreed in 2013 that there would continue to be a 

specialist service for people with personality disorders. The CCG consistently specified 
that the priorities for any new service model should be that:- 

 

37



CCG Governing Body Meeting in Public 16 September 2014 
Agenda Item 2.2  Page 2 

 

 it is equitable throughout the CCG area rather than just being largely Cambridge-
based (as is the case at present) - i.e. it is based on patient need and not where a 
patient lives; 

 there would be a stronger focus on clinical interventions that are evidence-based as 
set out in the most recent NICE guidance.   

 
3.3 While there had not been any  detailed discussions with commissioners about the 

future service model, there was a shared understanding with CPFT that any alternative 
model should (as with all community services) be based on a time-limited treatment 
pathway in line with the evidence base and the “recovery” model of mental health care.  

 
3.4 The CCG was notified in early March that a “sit-in” had been started at “Lifeworks” in 

Cambridge in response to a CPFT decision to close the service. “Lifeworks” was one of 
several services available for local people with personality disorder as part of a 
“Complex Cases” service. It offered a structured program of social and recreational 
activities, emphasising peer support. The service has recently only been available in 
Cambridge, and reliably run two days a week. In addition to Lifeworks, the Complex 
Cases service provided an open clinic between three and five times a week, which 
allowed service users to contact the service for a fifteen minute consultation if they felt 
in need of support or advice. 

 
3.5 CPFT subsequently acknowledged that in retrospect the proposed closure should also 

have been formally discussed with current service users to gain their views. In 
response to concerns raised by the CCG, Cambridgeshire County Council Health 
Committee, Healthwatch, advocates and other organisations, CPFT agreed to set up a 
consultation process, working with the CCG, on the future options for local personality 
disorder services. A transitional support programme including access to crisis support 
was also established for the duration of the consultation period.  

 
3.6 To end the sit-in CPFT agreed to form a Joint Proposal Project Group with the service 

users to develop an agreed model for future provision which would be submitted to 
commissioners for consideration, and to maintain the Lifeworks Service in Cambridge 
for 5 years.   

 
3.7 The feedback from the consultation exercise was reviewed by the CCG mental health 

commissioning lead at a meeting on 31st July also attended by representatives of both 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health Committees and Healthwatch 
Cambridgeshire. In summary, feedback from health and social care professionals who 
responded was strongly in support of the original proposal to establish an equitable and 
evidence-based CCG-wide specialist personality disorder service with the resources 
available. The majority of responses favoured the retention of “Lifeworks”, citing the 
lack of available support after discharge from the “specialist” service as their key issue. 
Most such responses were from the Cambridge area and there were very few 
responses from Peterborough and Fenland in particular.  

 
3.8 CPFT have produced a consultation report (Appendix 1) and the main themes of the 

feedback to the consultation are; 
 
a. Need for lifelong support and stability.  Concern about post-discharge support, 

access to crisis support and the role of GPs and other organisations. 

38



CCG Governing Body Meeting in Public 16 September 2014 
Agenda Item 2.2  Page 3 

 

b. Need for social support interventions and opportunities to socialise 
c. Greater equity welcomed but is the offer sufficient to meet needs? 
d. Service users need to be treated as individuals. Offer seems rigid and too medically 

driven 
e. Consultation unsatisfactory and information not clear. 
f. Service user participation in service design. 
g. Review and evaluation of new pathway is required 
h. Concerns about the funding for mental health services, including but not exclusive 

to personality disorder services and the view that funding in mental health may 
create savings in the wider health economy. 

3.9 Discussions about the service have been had with Local Commissioning Groups 
(usually at regular quarterly update meetings held with the mental health 
commissioning team). The consensus at these discussions has been that:- 

a. the CCG must commission a model that provides equitable access across all 
localities; 

b. the CCG cannot agree to “ring-fence” resources for any period to support any 
service that is not evidence-based or is only available in one locality. 

 
3.10 The LCG GP Mental Health Leads have also discussed this issue at length and, in 

addition to endorsing the two key points above, made the following additional 
comments:- 
  

 this group of patients consume significant resources elsewhere in the local health 
economy, it is likely that continued support post-discharge from specialist services 
would be a cost-effective intervention; 

 the lack of post-discharge support is a recurrent theme highlighted by primary care 
as an issue across all mental health pathways and has already been identified as a 
priority to address during the forthcoming QIPP/Five Year Plan re-design process; 

 it is possible that the voluntary sector would be able to provide some components of 
post-discharge support and this possibility should be fully explored as part of the 
QIPP/Five Year Plan re-design process.   

 
3.11 The LCG GP Mental Health Leads and CMET have endorsed the following two key 

recommendations to be submitted to the CCG Governing Body:- 
 

a. the CCG priority must remain the redistribution of the available resource to provide 
equitable  specialist personality disorder expertise in each locality. The original 
Commissioning Intention for an equitable and evidence-based CCG-wide specialist 
personality disorder service should therefore be implemented.  
 

b. to acknowledge that there are significant gaps in services supporting people 
recently discharged from specialist mental health services and that investment in 
these services is likely to be cost-effective. This is an issue common to all mental 
health pathways and should be a priority within the re-design process to deliver the 
CCG Five-Year Plan. It would not be sensible to commission any post-discharge 
support for personality disorder pathways in isolation. Therefore the work which is 
being developed by the Joint Proposal Project Group will form part of the 5 year 
plan as long as its proposals are: 

39



CCG Governing Body Meeting in Public 16 September 2014 
Agenda Item 2.2  Page 4 

 

 equitable and county wide as outlined above 

 in line with National best practice 

 meet the needs of local service users 

 demonstrate potential to make savings in other areas of healthcare. 
 
 
4. RISKS 
 
4.1 The following key risks and mitigating actions have been identified by the mental health 

commissioning support team:- 
 

 the redistribution of the available resource for specialist expertise in personality 
disorder may not provide sufficient capacity to meet the level of need for such 
specialist expertise CCG-wide. This is being mitigated by developing a “hub and 
spoke” model whereby staff delivering other community-based pathways are able to 
access this expertise when required; 

 inability of providers to deliver an equitable CCG-wide service to the required 
specification within the available resource. In such a circumstance we would explore 
alternative options, possibly involving the voluntary sector, in order to make the best 
possible use of the available resources;  

 the Five Year Plan re-design process may be unable to identify sufficient 
opportunities to release resources for post-discharge support whilst maintaining a 
safe and sustainable core mental health service. We will therefore seek as part of 
the planning process to identify the wider system savings to support this provision.  

 
 

5. SUMMARY 
  
5.1 Local specialist services for people with personality disorders have been recognised as 

important and discussed at length by the Local Commissioning Groups, LCG GP 
mental health leads network and CMET 

 
5.2 The Governing Body is asked to endorse the two key recommendations of the LCG GP 

Leads as set out in 3.11 above. 
 
 
 Author   Dr. Emma Tiffin 

CCG GP Clinical Lead - Mental Health 
 
   John Ellis 
   Head of Mental Health Commissioning and Contracting 
 
   Claire Hodgson 
   Mental Health Commissioning and Contracts Manager 
 

8th September 2014 

 

40



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 6

11 NOVEMBER 2014 Public Report

Report of the Chief Executive Officer, Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals
                                                                 NHS Foundation Trust

Contact Officer(s) – Jane Pigg, Company Secretary
Contact Details -      Jane.Pigg@pbh-tr.nhs.uk

PETERBOROUGH AND STAMFORD HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 
UPDATE REPORT

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report has been written to provide an update to the Scrutiny Commission for Health 
regarding the Trust’s overall position with specific detail regarding staffing and “winter 
pressures” planning.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Commission is asked to note the work being undertaken and to engage and support as 
appropriate the Local Health Economy in the work to provide sustainable, high quality services.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 As part of the health agenda this links to the improving health and supporting vulnerable people 
outcomes under priority 1 “creating opportunities – tackling inequalities” of the Sustainable 
Community Strategy.

This relates to national health indicators regarding staffing levels and A&E performance.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The last report made to the Commission from Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals on 8 July 
2014 concerned the outcome of the CQC Inspection undertaken in May 2014.  As a result 
members of the Commission attended the Trust’s CQC Action Plan Steering Group and were 
given a tour of Peterborough City Hospital as well as a taster of the Trust’s current patient food 
menu.

As well as concentrating on high quality care, the Trust is also part of the Local Health Economy 
work to provide sustainable services for the people of Peterborough and the surrounding areas.  
This work should complement the enforcement requirement on the Trust to run a tender 
exercise to attract a partner to ensure that services can be provided as cost-effectively as 
possible; and as a result the tender work was paused to ensure that issues arising from the 
Local Health Economy approach can be included.  The Commission will be updated on the 
progress of this work when it is restarted in early 2015.

Copies of the Trust’s Board papers are sent to the Scrutiny Officer on a routine basis.  These 
detail on a monthly basis quality, performance, finance, cost improvement, workforce and 
governance issues.  Two specific operational issues have been highlighted by the Commission 
as of interest:
 Nurse staffing levels;
 Preparation for winter planning and A&E Performance.

41

mailto:Jane.Pigg@pbh-tr.nhs.uk


These two issues are covered in detail below.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 Nurse staffing levels.

One of the recommendations arising from the Francis Inquiry was the need for all Trust’s to 
publish daily ward by ward actual staffing levels against locally agreed levels.  Whilst the Trust’s 
current reports show that not every shift is filled, the size of the Nursing workforce has increased 
by 14% over the last 2 years.  This has been in response to the demands of the service for 
additional one-to-one care, also known as specialing (circa 8 WTE since July), an increase in 
the use of escalation beds (circa 8 WTE since July) and increased nurse staffing levels following 
the Francis report. The substantive nursing workforce has increased by 8.61% since September 
2012; with a 7.5% increase in the establishment during that there has been a small decrease in 
the number of vacancies overall.  

As can be seen by the table above the Trust’s substantive staff are also supported by Agency 
and Bank staff.  In order to reduce the level of agency staff used, a number of initiatives have 
been undertaken.  This includes international recruitment, where of the 50 international nurses 
appointed over recent months 21 have now completed their supernumerary period and are 
making a full contribution on their wards.  

Our previously successful model of a programme of regular qualified nurse recruitment days has 
recommenced with the first event taking place at the end of October. Additionally we have a 
programme of planned recruitment events for Healthcare Assistants. 

Since the launch of our ‘refer a friend’ campaign 6 qualified Nurses have started in post and 
another 5 are currently progressing through the recruitment process. This has been a successful 
strategy to attract qualified nurses to join the trust. 

A staff retention project is also running which is gathering data from current staff and leavers so 
that action can be targeted to themes and any areas of concern.

Detailed monitoring of staffing levels is undertaken.  Each in-patient ward area displays a 
whiteboard to show the appropriate staffing levels determined for the area and the number of 
staff on duty each day (planned versus actual). This increases the transparency for staff and 
visitors around staffing levels planned and available for patient care delivery. The Trust staffing 
levels RAG rating is reviewed in each ward at a minimum of once per shift and the ratings are 
managed initially within each Directorate, then across the Trust if escalation is required.

The RAG rating can be explained as follows:
Green - Appropriate staffing levels.
Amber - Requires a clinical risk assessment.
Red -     Requires escalation.

42



Where it is not possible to manage amber or red staffing levels within the Clinical Directorate or 
across the Trust, the use of temporary staff should be considered in the following way:
 Use of Flexible Staffing Service (FSS) resource (either ward staff working additional shifts in 

the grade of shift required, or FSS only staff).
 Use of staff senior to grade of shift required via FSS paid at their substantive grade.
 Use of agency staff.

Where concerns remain, the relevant ward manager should escalate their concerns through the 
line management structure within the Directorate initially, or to the corporate nursing team if 
required.

The final outcome of staff availability is reported each month to the Board and where wards 
show continuing staffing concerns a staffing scrutiny panel is held to review the data and 
increase the achievement of green staffing levels. 

5.2 Operational Resilience and A&E Performance

Members of the Commission will be aware that the Trust’s performance against the national 
A&E standard for 95% of patients to be seen, treated, discharged or admitted within 4 hours is 
below this standard.  The graph below shows the year to date performance.

Whilst there had been a recent improvement, the A&E performance significantly declined in 
September.  There is no single reason for the fall in the performance, but it is due to a 
combination of a number of factors materialising on certain days in these months.  

The poor A&E performance is not necessarily just an indicator of the performance of the Trust, 
but it should be seen as barometer of the performance of the health economy.  This is 
recognised by all health partners and is reflected in the system wide operational and capacity 
resilience plan that has been co-ordinated by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group.  The overall aim of the plan is to increase integration of services and 
reduce demand and the number of delayed transfers of care at the Trust.  

It is also useful to place A&E performance in the context of the growing level of A&E admissions 
and emergency admissions; this is illustrated in the two graphs overleaf.

43



44



45



To ensure focus on the area of urgent care, as well as an internal Urgent Care Board, there is 
currently a weekly system-wide review of performance.  As a result of this 7 key areas have 
been identified as follows:

(a) The co-ordination of primary care input into the emergency department – November 2014;

(b) The development and delivery of a Frail Elderly Unit – mid November 2014;

(c) The opening of a Surgical Assessment Unit – mid November 2014;

(d) Ambulatory Care Unit further expansions with

o Increased number of pathways for treatment – beginning of December 2014;

o Extended opening hours – March 2015;

(e) The delivery of a Single Point of Access so that each community provider uses a single 
assessment form – January 2015;

(f) Reopening of 6 beds at Stamford Hospital – beginning of December 2014;

(g) Reduced number of delayed transfers of care to a maximum of 20 from the current levels of 
approximately 40.

The Trust has also received £3m of non-recurrent winter monies which will support some of the 
above developments.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The implications from this report regard effective and safe healthcare. 

This report covers the whole Trust catchment area – which is wider than the geographic area 
covered by the Scrutiny Commission and Peterborough City Council services.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 No consultation is involved.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 Progress against all these items can be monitored through a review of the Trust Board papers.  
Members of the Scrutiny Commission are asked to consider any follow-up information required.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust public board papers can be found 
at:
www.peterboroughandstamford.nhs.uk > About Us > Trust public board meetings

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None

46

http://www.peterboroughandstamford.nhs.uk/


SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 7

11 NOVEMBER 2014 Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Communities and Targeted Services

Contact Officer(s) – Paulina Ford/Ian Phillips
Contact Details -  452508/863849

SCRUTINY IN A DAY – ONE YEAR ON

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To update the Committee on proposals for reviewing the joint Scrutiny in a Day on the impacts 
of welfare reform.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To agree to hold a further joint scrutiny event on 9th January 2015 to review the progress made 
against the lines of enquiry developed at the Scrutiny in a Day event on the impacts of welfare 
reform.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Welfare Benefit system has undergone significant changes over the last two years.  Further 
changes to the benefit system will take place during the next year and likely into the new 
Parliament.  The impacts of these changes may be considerable for some people both in and 
out of work.  

The purpose of the joint scrutiny approach to this area will be to understand the impact to 
individuals and identify measures that the council can adopt to protect the most vulnerable 
people in our community.

There are links to improving health, education and skills, empowering communities, increasing 
economic activity and building community cohesion.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

On 17th January 2014, each Scrutiny Committee and Commission agreed to participate in a 
ground-breaking ‘Scrutiny in a Day’ event, entitled ‘Understanding and Managing the Impacts of 
Welfare Reform on Communities in Peterborough’, to develop an in-depth understanding of the 
issues and opportunities and to scrutinise responses on this cross-cutting agenda.  The event 
provided all scrutiny councillors and other participants with a chance to understand the 
Government’s strategy on Welfare Reform, and how it affects Peterborough. 

As a result, a number of recommendations and lines of enquiry were developed – these are set 
out in annex A.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 Since the Scrutiny in a Day event, a number of work streams have been developed that can 
demonstrate the impact that the council is having to support vulnerable people.  It is proposed 
that a follow up half day event is held on Friday 9 January 2015 to review and update all 
Scrutiny Committees and Commissions on the lines of enquiry.  The event will also be an 
opportunity for Scrutiny Committees and Commissions to develop any further lines of enquiry.

47



6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 None

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 A programme will be developed for 9th January 2015 and invites sent to all councillors to attend 
the event.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 None

10. APPENDICES

Annex A attached – Recommendations and lines of enquiry

48



Annex A

Recommendations and Lines of Enquiry from each Scrutiny Committee 
or Commission

Four of the five Scrutiny Committees or Commissions produced a shortlist of key lines of 
enquiry or recommendations that those present felt they may want to focus on during the 
2014/15 municipal year. These are set out as follows:

Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities
1. To explore the impact of welfare reform on young people and their attainment in mainstream 

education.
2. To identify barriers to work and explore how early years provision, support and related services 

can help parents into employment. 
3. To understand the impact and needs arising from welfare reform and ensure that initiatives 

such as Connecting Families can meet these needs.

Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee
1. To explore the impact of the cessation of the Local Welfare Provision funding from Department 

of Work and Pensions and develop recommendations to Cabinet on how the Peterborough 
Community Assistance Scheme can be sustained.

2. To raise awareness of the ongoing reforms, the impacts and support available with 
communities, councillors and partners.  Develop opportunities for sharing experiences caused 
by welfare reforms between communities, councillors and partners.

3. To explore opportunities of how investing in local community groups can help to prevent and 
tackle poverty.

4. To receive a report on the extent of gambling within the city and develop actions to mitigate the 
impact of gambling such as education, awareness raising and prevention.

Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues
1. To create an accessible, visible and customer-orientated access point for advice
2. To receive and scrutinise a report from Public Health on planned initiatives relating to healthy 

eating, food and nutrition along with the links to poverty and other lifestyle factors
3. When receiving the Public Health report above, to look at links between the nutrition and 

uptake of school meals and educational attainment.
4. To receive and scrutinise a report on the impact of poverty on public health and explore how 

investing in measures to tackle poverty can improve health outcomes.

Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee
1. To consider the Council’s response to gambling and to devise a holistic approach to combatting 

the economic threats posed by gambling and vice
2. To understand the role that the voluntary sector can play in helping the council to deliver its key 

objectives.  To foster closer links into and between the voluntary sector and review how the 
Council can support this

3. To scrutinise the Affordable Housing Capital Strategy to enable the Committee to consider 
recommendations relating to social housing.

Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
As the remit of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities is cross-cutting, members will 
consider which of the recommendations and lines of enquiry above they wish to pursue 
alongside new suggestions that have emerged since the event.

49



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No.  8

11 NOVEMBER 2014 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues outlining the content of the 
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be taken 
after 28 November 2014.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Commission with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need 
to be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Executive Decisions

51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  

 
 
 
 

PUBLISHED:  31 OCTOBER 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB 

PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS 

In the period commencing 28 days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below in 
Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant impact 
on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below: 
Cllr Cereste (Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Holdich (Deputy Leader); Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca and Cllr Scott. 
 
This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
08702 388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. 
 
PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE 
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.  

 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given). 
 
PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS 
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis. 
 
You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will 
be available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.  

 
All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions.  If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan. 
 

54

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 

KEY DECISIONS FROM 28 NOVEMBER 2014 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Budget Proposals – 
KEY/28NOV14/01 
To recommend the first 
tranche of budget 
proposals to Council. 

Councillor 
Marco Cereste 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement 

December 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic 
Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director – 
Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate and 
conclude the sale of Dickens 
Street Car Park.  
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic 
Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

55



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Care and Repair 
Framework Agreement - 
KEY/18DEC12/01 
To approve a framework 
agreement and schedule of 
rates to deliver disabled 
facility grant work, 
specifically providing 
disabled access to toilet and 
washing facilities and 
associated work in domestic 
properties. 

Councillor Nigel 
North 
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital 
 

November 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant Internal 
Departments. 
 
 

Russ Carr 
Care & Repair 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863864 
russ.carr@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Section 75 Agreement 
with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
(CCG) for the Provision 
of a Joint Child Health 
and Wellbeing 
Commissioning Unit - 
KEY/21FEB14/01 
Authorisation for the entry 
into a statutory Section 75 
Agreement, for an initial two 
year period, with the CCG for 
the provision of a borderline 
and Peterborough joint child 
health and wellbeing 
commissioning unit. 

Councillor 
Marco Cereste 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement 
 

November 
2014 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.  
 
 

Oliver Hayward 
Head of Business 
Management 
Tel: 01733 863910 
oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Sale of Greenwood 
House - 
KEY/21MAR14/02 
Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Greenwood House, 
South Parade. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Simon Webber 
Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384545 
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

56



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03 
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Simon Webber 
Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384545 
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Peterborough City 
Council Customer 
Strategy 2014 - 
KEY/21MAR14/06 
To approve the Customer 
Strategy. The vision is to 
provide a range of high-
quality services whilst 
maximising customer 
satisfaction and delivering 
these services through 
different channels at the 
lowest reasonable cost, 
whilst also reducing or 
diverting demand. 

Cabinet 
 

8 December 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Ricky Fuller 
Head of Strategic 
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation 
Tel: 01733 452482 
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01 
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care 
 

November 
2014 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Nick Blake 
Head of 
Commissioning for 
Older People, Physical 
Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment 
Tel: 01733 452406 
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

57



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

Date 
decision 
expected 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste 
Transfer Station - 
KEY/18APR14/02 
To award a contract for 
the build of a waste 
transfer station. 

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey 
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications 

 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Paul Robertson 
Waste Project Officer 
Tel: 01733 864740 
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Household 
Recycling Centre - 
KEY/18APR14/03 
To award a contract for 
the build of a household 
recycling centre. 

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey 
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications 

 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Paul Robertson 
Waste Project Officer 
Tel: 01733 864740 
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Print Managed Services 
- KEY/13JUN14/01 
To enable Council officers to 
be able to print, copy and 
scan. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Ricky Fuller 
Head of Strategic 
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation 
Tel: 01733 452482 
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

58



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Joint Venture 
Implementation - 
KEY/25JUL14/02 
To approve the 
implementation of the 
Joint Venture. 

Councillor 
Marco Cereste 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Simon Machen 
Director of Growth and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01733 453475 
simon.machen@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

New Model for 
Transforming Day 
Opportunities for Adults 
Under 65 - 
KEY/25AUG14/02 
To approve the proposed 
model for implementation. 

Cabinet 
 

November 
2014 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Mubarak Darbar 
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities 
Tel: 01733 452509 
mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Residential and Nursing 
Care Contracts - 
KEY/22AUG14/03 
To seek approval for the 
award of contracts to 
providers of 24 hour 
residential and nursing 
care support. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care 
 

November 
2014 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Nick Blake 
Head of 
Commissioning for 
Older People, Physical 
Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment 
Tel: 01733 452406 
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

59



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Southfields Primary 
School Expansion - 
KEY/05SEP14/01 
To authorise the 
construction of an 
extension to 
accommodate the 
expansion of Southfields 
Primary School. 

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University 
 

November 
2014 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Emma Everitt 
Project Support Officer 
Tel: 01733 863660 
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Renewable Energy and 
Energy Efficiency 
Scheme - 
KEY/05SEP14/03 
Installation of Solar 
Photovoltaic (PV) Panels to 
PCC’s Commercial 
Properties including 
industrial estates. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Steven Morris 
Client Property 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 384657 
steven.morris@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Care and Repair Heating 
Framework Agreement – 
KEY19SEP14/01 
To approve a framework 
agreement and schedule 
of rates to deliver Repairs 
Assistance grant work, 
specifically the installation 
of central heating systems 
in domestic properties. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 
Housing 
Services 

November 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Russ Carr 
Care and Repair 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863864 
Russ.carr@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Fit to Rent Scheme – 
KEY/17OCT14/01 
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented 
sector. 
 

Cabinet 8 December 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Belinda Child 
Housing Strategic 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863769 
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

60



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Sale of Former London 
Road Allotments – 
KEY/17OCT14/03 
To authorise the 
negotiation and conclusion 
of the sale of the former 
London Road Allotments, 
Peterborough. 
 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

David Gray 
Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384531 
David.gray@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Libraries and 
Community Services 
Review KEY/03NOV14/01 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery. 
 

Cabinet  
 

November 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 

Paul Stevenette 
Programme Manager 
Tel: 01733 452475 
Paul.stevenette@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Future of Solar and 
Wind Projects – 
KEY/14NOV14/01 
To approve the cessation 
of the solar/wind projects 
at Newborough Farm and 
Morris Fen and to 
consider the way forward 
in respect of America 
Farm. 
 

Cabinet  
 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

John Harrison 
Executive Director  
Resources 
Tel: 01733 452520 
John.harrison@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

61



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

A14 Cambridge to 
Huntingdon 
Improvements – 
KEY14/14NOV14/02 
To approve the local 
funding arrangements for 
the improvement works. 
 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 
Housing 
Services 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Mark Speed 
Transport and 
Infrastructure 
Commissioning 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 317471 
Mark.speed@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Residential Care – 
KEY14/19NOV14/01 
To authorise the Director 
of Adult Social Care to 
make residential 
placements. 
 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care 

November 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Rob Henchy 
Commissioning 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 452429 
Rob.henchy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

62



 
PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE 

 

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



 
PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS 

 

NON-KEY DECISIONS  
 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Homelessness Strategy 
To review and comment 
on the Homelessness 
Review and to agree the 
proposed Homelessness 
Strategy and recommend 
to Council for adoption. 
 

Cabinet November 
2014 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Sean Evans 
Housing Needs 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 864083 
Sean.evans@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Introduction of a Respite 
Care Policy for Adults 
To approve the 
introduction of a respite 
policy for adults who are 
eligible for social care 
services. 
 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

October 2014 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Kim Sawyer 
Director of Governance 
Tel: 01733 452361 
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Anti-Bribery Policy 
To approve the Anti-
Bribery Policy  
 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

October 2014 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Kim Sawyer 
Director of Governance 
Tel: 01733 452361 
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

64



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough 
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014. 

Councillor 
John Holdich 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University 

October 2014 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Carrie Gamble 
Commissioner 
Tel: 01733 863931 
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Council Tax Benefit 
Consultation 
To agree the consultation 
on Council Tax Benefit. 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Corporate 
Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2015/16 to 
2024/25 
 

Cabinet 24 November 
2014 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic 
Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Post 16 Transport Policy 
To approve updates to the 

Post 16 Transport policy. 

 

Councillor 
John Holdich 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University 

November 
2014 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Sara Thompson 
Team Manager 
(Passenger Transport 
Operations) 
Tel: 01733 317452 
Sarah.thompson@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

 
 
 
 

65



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
Strategic Finance 
Internal Audit 
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning) 
Corporate Property 
Waste and Energy 
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support) 
 
CHILDREN’S SERVICES DEPARTMENT Executive Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB 
Safeguarding Family and Communities 
Education  
School Improvement 
Special Educational Needs / Inclusion and the Pupil Referral Service 
 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE Executive Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
Care Services Delivery (Assessment and Care Management and Integrated Learning Disability Services)  
Mental Health 
Public Health (including Health Performance Management) 
 
COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB 
Strategic Commissioning  
Safer Peterborough, Cohesion, Social Inclusion and Neighbourhood Management 
 
GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
Communications 
Legal and Governance Services  
HR Business Relations (Training and Development, Occupational Health and Reward and Policy) 
Strategic Regulatory Services 
Performance Management 
 

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD 
Strategic Growth and Development Services 
Strategic Housing 
Planning Transport and Engineering (Development Management, Construction and Compliance, Infrastructure Planning and Delivery, Network 
Management and Passenger Transport) 
Commercial Operations (Strategic Parking and Commercial CCTV, City Centre, Markets and Commercial Trading and Tourism) 

66



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS  INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



      Updated: 2 October 2014

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES
WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15

Meeting Date Item Progress

Health and Wellbeing Board LGA Peer Review Letter and Action Plan

To note the contents of the review, scrutinize the action plan and make any 
recommendations.

Contact Officers: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn/Jana Burton
Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, CQC 
Report

Contact Officer: Jane Pigg
Personality Disorder Community Service/Complex Cases Service, 
including Lifeworks Consultation

Contact Officer:  Neil Winstone, Associate Director of Performance 
Delivery
Older Peoples Procurement Programme Board End of Consultation 
Paper

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden

8  July 2014
Draft report 19 June

Final report 26 June

Review of 2013/14 and Future Work Programme 2014/15

To review the work undertaken during 2014/15 and to consider the future 
work programme of the Committee.

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer

69



      Updated: 2 October 2014

Meeting Date Item Progress

Local Health Economy Five Year Strategic Plan

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden / Andy Vowles

Adult Social Care Update
To scrutinise and comment on the Adult Social Care transformation update, 
Adult Social Care Complaints 2013-2014 and Adult Social Care Account.

Contact Officer:  Jana Burton

10 September 2014
Draft report 22 
August

Final report 29 
August

Cardio Vascular Disease

Contact Officer: Dr Henriette Ewart

Children’s Health Care Performance

Contact Officer:  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn

Health and Wellbeing Board Peer Review Action Plan

Contact Officers:  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn / Jana Burton

Primary Health Care Strategy for East of England

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden / Andrew Reed

14 October 2014
Draft report 25 Sept

Final report 2 Oct

Better Care Fund

Contact Officer:  Jana Burton

70



      Updated: 2 October 2014

Meeting Date Item Progress

CPFT  - Personality Disorder Community Service/Complex Cases 
Service, including Lifeworks Consultation Outcome
 

Contact Officer:  Neil Winstone, Associate Director of Performance Delivery

Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Update

Contact Officer:  Jane Pigg

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group 
Update

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden

11 November 2014
Draft report 23 Oct

Final report 30 Oct

Scrutiny in a Day – One Year On

Contact officer: Adrian Chapman / Ian Phillips

Older Peoples Programme Preferred Bidder

1. Contact Officer:  Jess Bawden

8 January 2014
Draft report 17 Dec

Final report 24 Dec

Response to the Francis Report from Commissioners Perspective

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden

71



      Updated: 2 October 2014

Meeting Date Item Progress

Portfolio Progress Report for Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care .

Contact Officer:  Jana Burton

(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions)
 T.B.A. February 
2015 
Draft report 

Final report 

Budget 2015/16 and Medium Term Financial Plan
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2014/15 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan.

2. Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Plan Quarterly Update

Contact Officers:  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn / Jana Burton

10 March 2015
Draft report 19 Feb

Final report 26 Feb

Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic 
Planning, Housing, Economic Development and Business Engagement 
(Portfolio includes Responsibility for all Public Health Functions of the 
Council and lead spokesperson for all matters relating to the commissioning 
and provision of health services by the CCG, NHS and any other bodies for 
Peterborough)

72



      Updated: 2 October 2014

Meeting Date Item Progress

Possible Items for Scrutiny: 

Adult Social Care

Healthwatch

Public Health 

 Young Peoples Sexual Health and Wellbeing Strategy

 Suicide Prevention Strategy, Contact Officer:  Kathy Hartley

The Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Business Plan Six monthly progress report 

Peterborough and Stamford Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 Action plan quarterly update

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. CPFT Consultation Paper - Personality Disorder Community Service/Complex Cases, Including Lifeworks
	4. Appendix 1 - CFPT Consultation Response - SCHI - 141111

	5. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group Update
	5. Appendix A CCG Board Paper 16th Sept 2014  - SCHI - 141111

	6. Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Update Report
	7. Scrutiny in a Day - One Year On
	8. Notice of Intention to Take Executive Decisions
	8. Appendix 1 -  Forward Plan of Executive Decisions - SCHI - 141111

	9. Work Programme 2014/2015

